
AMENDED 12/15/ 2006   

CAPE COD NATIONAL SEASHORE ADVISORY COMMISSION 

TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY-EIGHTH MEETING 

 

 HELD AT CAPE COD NATIONAL SEASHORE, Marconi Station Area, Park 

Headquarters, South Wellfleet, Massachusetts, on Monday, September 25, 2006, 

commencing at 1:10 p.m. 

 

SITTING: 

Ronald Kaufman, Chairman 
Brenda J. Boleyn, Vice Chairman 
Butch Francis 
Peter Watts 
Alix Ritchie 
Ernest Virgilio 
Ed Sabin 
 
Larry Spaulding, alternate 
William Clark, alternate 
 
Also present: 
 
George Price, Superintendent 
Carrie Phillips, Chief of Natural Resources 
Sue Moynihan, Chief of Interpretation and Cultural Resources 
John Portnoy, Natural Resources Ecologist 
Scottee Nista, Assistant to the Superintendent 
Steve Prokop, Chief Ranger 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 Mr. Kaufman called the meeting to order, and asked for a consensus on the 

adoption of the agenda.  The item was moved, seconded and unanimously approved.  The 

Chairman then asked for approval of the minutes of the previous meeting.  The item was 

moved, seconded, and unanimously approved. 

 

   SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

    Dune Shacks 

 The first item Mr. Price spoke about was the Dune Shack Report.  An internal 

review of the documents from Dr. Wolfe will take some time.  Architects have done a 

survey of the cottages.  Waiting for funding for another environmental impact study is a 

long way away. 

 Regarding the Fowler cottage:  Mrs. Fowler passed away and what action is to be 

taken?  The final determination was to ask Peter to leave the cottage.  The family still has 

recognized use and occupancy of the cottage.  How will we look after the cottage?  This 

is pending until the next Management Plan.  The cottage will not be allowed to 

deteriorate or be torn down.   We also spoke with the Provincetown Board of Selectmen 

to discuss this issue.  We are awaiting a final determination before we design the next 

steps. 

 Mr. Kaufman asked if at this time the group could hear a comment from the 

public, specifically Peter Clemens. 

 



 Mr. Clemens spoke of the history of the dune shacks.  He stated that the Fowlers 

had cared for the shack to a great degree and were granted a life estate.  The Fowlers had 

asked Mr. Clemens to care for the shack through an early agreement.  The Clemens’ 

found a 30-day notice to vacate to be totally unacceptable. 

     ORVs

 Mr. Price stated that most previous discussion on ORVs was related to issuing 

tickets, etc.  With the continued success of the plovers, the park was faced with a total 

closure of the beach.  Although not an easy decision, this year total closure was 

necessary.  Alternatives were considered; a shuttle system was contemplated.  The 

lighthouse program had to be shut down.  Local shops lost business because of so many 

people cancelling.  Many letters of complaint were received.  There was a meeting with 

Provincetown Selectmen and there was a public meeting at Provincelands Visitor Center. 

 Mr. Price showed a map on which Mark Adams had plotted where the nesting 

areas are.  There were more birds here than ever before, but productivity was not up.  In 

the last number of years only one area had no nests.  According to US Fish and Wildlife, 

we have to do all we can to protect those areas.  Because of our agreement with Fish & 

Wildlife, we have to do a review.  We will be asking the ORV subcommittee to take this 

on as an additional charge.  We are planning to work with the Fish & Wildlife, and we 

don’t know what, if any, changes will be made next year.  We would like to figure out a 

way to avoid total closure, a way for fishing to be continued, and a way to provide a place 

for camping at Pilgrim Springs and the Province Lands Visitor Center.  Mr. Sabin 

mentioned that Chatham and Orleans also had this problem, and we should see how they 

dealt with it.  Mr. Price stated that we will be looking at ways to avoid closure by 



working with other towns on the Cape.  The total closure was only about 14 days, not 

what “letters to the editor” seemed to indicate.  Mr. Prokop stated the closure was from 

late June through July 10th. 

 We have gone from about 20 pairs of birds to 80-90 pairs, and we should be 

proud.  On the other hand, where businesses were concerned, we will try to work with 

everyone.  The Provincetown Board of Selectmen felt out of the loop. 

 Mr. Spaulding asked if we can move the area where they hatch to provide a road 

for people.  Mr. Price stated that no, that would not be legal. 

 Mr. Virgilio stated that this population would continue to grow, and therefore, 

would the park be closed a majority of the time in the future.  Mr. Price stated that the 

birds don’t nest in the same place every year. 

 Mr. Francis asked if the closure is only for motor vehicles, i.e., not for walkers, 

etc.  Art’s Dune Tours was not affected, as they are to go on the beach. 

 Mr. Spaulding asked if we could construct another road.  Mr. Price responded that 

that option would probably not be successful. 

 Ms. Ritchie inquired about refunding money to those who bought permits.  Mr. 

Price stated that there is no process for refunding the money.  People who bought permits 

were allowed to be in alternate sites, or they could use the permit at another time in the 

future.  Ms. Ritchie suggested that the ability to get refunds be explored as some visitors 

only have that week or two-week timeframe for their vacation and can’t take advantage 

of using another time.  Mr. Price stated we would try to work out other options. 

 

     



Hunting EIS

 The compliance review was delayed in Washington.  The EIS was made public 

and over 200 comments have been received.   A decision has to be made one way or 

another by this hunting season.  The final document has to address all comments.  Mr. 

Price stated he was not able to get all the paperwork ready for an August decision, and 

decided to review the timeline.  Staff will continue with responses and the review 

process, and now it should be ready by November.  Pheasant hunting is still not allowed.  

Pheasant hunting is allowed in other parts of the state, but not at CCNS.  The EIS has to 

address all aspects of hunting. 

    Herring River

 Mr. Price introduced John Portnoy and told the Commission members that John 

had received the 2006 Environmental Achievement Award from the Park Service.  The 

Town of Wellfleet technical committee and stakeholder’s committee are working on 

developing a restoration plan for Wellfleet’s Herring River (about 80 acres).  Truro now 

has a member on the committee.  Cape Cod National Seashore is continuing to monitor 

the level.  Both Mr. Kaufman and Ms. Boleyn complimented Mr. Portnoy for his work. 

 Ms. Ritchie asked about Pilgrim Lake – it smells.  Mr. Portnoy said this could be 

the result of a lack of tidal flushing, and that the Corps of Engineers is looking into better 

flushing.  He stated Pilgrim Lake is doing very well.  He stated the probable location for 

the pipe would be south of Noon’s Landing to restore tidal flushing.  Mr. Price suggested 

the Commission take a field trip out there. 

     



Wind Turbines

 Mr. Price stated he has been approached by towns to have wind turbines within 

the park.  The Planners Round Table has taken this topic on.  Mr. Price said he has been 

looking into view sheds; modeling after cell phone towers.   

 Mr. Watts said that Wellfleet has a subcommittee working on wind energy.  Ms. 

Ritchie stated that Provincetown has a significant interest in wind energy.  Ms. Boleyn 

asked if there are any data from the met tower.  Mr. Price stated that readings are taken 

monthly on a 1-year schedule. 

    Highland Center Update

 Mr. Price reported that by next month water and sewer work should be completed.  

Payomet is set up; Highland Fest took place.  Highland Center, Inc. is to come up with 

implementation on the next phase. 

    News From Washington

 Mr. Price announced that Mary Bomar has been tapped to be the new Director of 

the NPS.  He reported that she is a very dynamic person.  He noted that NPS retirees have 

given Mr. Kempthorne and Ms. Bomar high marks. 

 It was noted that in September of 2008 the Advisory Commission charter expires.  

Mr. Price expressed his desire for the Commission to continue.  Ms. Boleyn said the 

group was part of the enabling legislation and should be continued.  She expressed that a 

timetable of what the group has to go through to recertify the group should be looked at 

now.  Ms. Ritchie noted that this should be an agenda item at the next meeting.  There 

was discussion with Keith Bergman regarding renewable energy (E85 Ethanol bill).  The 

park is using biodiesel now.  We are working with the Cape Cod Commission on 



renewable fuel on the Cape.  Mr. Price noted that Provincetown Public Works and CCNS 

may combine facilities. 

    Nauset Light Beach Parking Area

 Mr. Price said that by all accounts our collaboration with the Town was 

successful.  Mr. Sabin asked if there could be a way of reporting how often the parking 

lot was filled. 

   Alternate Transportation System (ATS)

 Mr. Price was happy to announce that the Flex and the Provincetown bus have 

both been extremely successful.  We are working with the Cape Cod Commission on bus 

stops: where they should be, how they should look, etc.  Ms. Ritchie noted that the 

successes are amazing, but that there are no buses on Sundays in the fall and she felt it is 

very important to have service available.  Mr. Price said we would look into restoring 

Sunday services.  Kudos given to Mr. Price and staff for meeting this challenge. 

 Mr. Kaufman asked if there was any Old Business; there was none. 

 Mr. Kaufman asked if there was any New Business; there was none. 

   Date and Agenda for Next Meeting 

 The date of the next Commission meeting was set for December 15.  Topics will 

include:  Herring River Restoration, a Structure Inventory (with a possible field trip), and 

the reauthorization of the Commission. 

    Public Comment

 Gail Cohen expressed that she was very upset about the Peter Clemens and the 

Fowler Cottage situation.  She told Mr. Price that he owed Peter Clemons an apology.  

She gave a history of the cottage and the area and the significance it holds. 



     Adjournment

 Mr. Kaufman moved to adjourn the meeting.  This was moved and seconded and 

the meeting was adjourned at 2:30 p.m. 

  

      

  


